
Publication Date 24 June 2020 
Please ask for Michael Cunliffe 
Direct Line 0161 253 5399 
E-mail m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk

TO: All Members of Health Scrutiny Committee

Councillors : S Smith (Chair), J Grimshaw, D Gunther, S Haroon, 
M Hayes, T Holt, K Hussain, O Kersh, B Mortenson, C Tegolo, R Walker 
and S Walmsley

Dear Member/Colleague

Health Scrutiny Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Health Scrutiny Committee which will be 
held as follows:-

Date: Thursday, 2 July 2020

Place: Virtual meeting via MS Teams

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members 
require briefing on any particular item on the 
Agenda, the appropriate Director/Senior Officer 
originating the related report should be 
contacted.

Notes:

mailto:m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk


AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of Health Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider whether they have an 
interest in any of the matters on the agenda and if so, to formally declare that 
interest.

3 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Questions are invited from members of the public (Either pre submitted) or present 
at the meeting on any matters for which this Committee is responsible.

4 MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 4)

Minutes of the meeting held on the 14th May 2020 are attached.

5 MENTAL HEALTH  - UPDATE ON SERVICE PROVISION IN LIGHT OF COVID-19  
(Pages 5 - 14)

Report attached.

6 UPDATE ON COVID RESPONSE AND RECOVERY PLANNING INCLUDING 
TEST & TRACE  

Report to follow (The final version of the local outbreak plan will be produced by the 
30th June).

7 CARE UPDATE (INCLUDING IMPACT OF COVID IN RELATION TO WINTER 
PRESSURES IN 19/20 AND PLANNING FOR 20/21  

8 URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency. 



1

Minutes of: HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 14th May 2020

Present: Councillor S Smith (in the Chair)
Councillors C. Cummings, J Grimshaw, S Haroon, 
K Hussain, O Kersh, C Morris, L Smith, C Tegolo, R Walker 
and S Walmsley

Also in 
attendance: Dr Jeffrey Schryer

Julie Gonda
Geoff Little
Councillor Caserta
Councillor Simpson
Nicky O’Connor
Joseph Tidman, Bury Times

Public Attendance: No members of the public were present at the meeting.

Apologies for Absence: None

HSC.1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

There were no apologies for absence submitted.

HSC.2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

HSC.3 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

There were no pre submitted questions from members of the public.

HSC.4 MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 15th January 2020 were submitted for 
approval.

It was agreed:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record. 

HSC.5 BURY HEALTH AND CARE SYSTEM UPDATE ON RESPONSE TO COVID19 

A presentation was made at the meeting and the covering report attached to the 
agenda outlined the key work that the Health & Care system in Bury had 
undertaken in the response to the COVID-19 pandemic. As the response continued 
efforts were now focussed on the planning and recovery phases.

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 4



Health Scrutiny Committee, 14 May 2020

2

Geoff little reported on the latest data including the number of deaths that had 
occurred in Bury and Dr Schryer provided information on confirmed cases. 
Julie Gonda commented on Bury’s response objectives and social care support.

An overview was given on the response to date and recovery planning.

A summary was provided to Members on the following topics with detailed 
information presented:-

 Introduction of testing & contact tracing
 Risks and challenges in recovery 
 Recovery phasing 
 Recovery principles
 Recovery priorities
 Role of Community Hubs
 Cohorts to consider in recovery
 Overall recovery for Bury

Members present at the meeting then asked a number of questions to Council 
officers and health professionals present and were provided with answers to the 
following questions:-

 Would the NHS be reimbursing the CCG for the extra financial pressures of 
Covid 19?

 When people return to work could this see a reduction in staffing of the Hubs 
and could Council officers be redeployed temporary to the Hubs.

 Would there be extra funding available from the Government in relation to 
social care?

 A request was made to explain the technology behind the testing and contact 
tracing system.

 Media reports had highlighted higher cases of Covid 19 in the BAME 
community.

 Would there be phased testing in care homes?
 Are phone apps to be used for tracing case related contacts?
 Following deaths in Fairfield Hospital which were caused by Covid 19, they 

had not followed religious requirements when dealing with the body.

Information was provided on the approach which would be taken by the Council to 
enforce the Government’s lockdown via means of explanation and encouragement. 

A discussion took place about vaccines and anti-body tests along with the national 
shortage off PPE equipment and the increased price for these products. 

It was agreed:

That the update report and presentation be noted. 

HSC.6 URGENT BUSINESS 

Dr Schryer provided an update about the Garden City Medical Centre in Bury 
and the recent death of Dr Saad Al-Dubbaisi due to Covid 19. He provided 

Document Pack Page 2



Health Scrutiny Committee, 14 May 2020

3

information on what would happen at the centre due to it being a single 
doctor run led practice. 

It was agreed:

That the update be noted and the Health Scrutiny Committee 
placed on record their condolences to Dr Dubbaisi, his family, 
friends and patients at this sad time.

COUNCILLOR S SMITH
Chair 

(Note:  The meeting started at 6.30 pm and ended at 7.55 pm)

Document Pack Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Document Pack Page 4



1

REPORT TO : HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE REPORT

DATE: June 2020

SUBJECT: CYP Mental Health Update

REPORT FROM:
Karen Whitehead Strategic Lead Inclusion 
& Partnerships 

CONTACT OFFICER:
0161-253-5773
Jemma Billing Senior Children’s 
Commissioner CCG, Nicola Gray HYM 
Operational Manager 

TYPE OF DECISION:
 
For information

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS:

SUMMARY:
A presentation to give an update on 
children’s mental health services during 
the Covid outbreak and the recovery plans.

OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework:

Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?

Statement by the S151 

Agenda
Item

Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Report

Document Pack Page 5 Agenda Item 5



2

Officer:
Financial Implications 
and Risk 
Considerations:
Statement by Executive 
Director of Resources & 
Regulation:
Equality/Diversity 
implications:
Considered by 
Monitoring Officer:

Wards Affected:

Scrutiny Interest:

Embed presentation link

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership 

Team

Executive 
Member/Chair

Ward Members Partners

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

Document Pack Page 6



Children and Young People’s Mental 

Health - Health Scrutiny 

June 2020 

1

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 7



Introduction
• In response to the current pandemic Bury OCO have worked in partnership with all providers to design a graduated approach to

support schools and parents to access the right support at the right time. We have developed a suite of support that will be made

available so children young people and their families and schools at a universal, targeted and specialist level.

• Currently referrals into all our mental health services have significantly reduced. As a consequence of this we currently have no

waiting times for HYM and are in a position to respond to changing needs the pandemic will bring.

• As a system we are anticipating a greater need across the board in all our services, to plan for this we have reflected on what is

currently commissioned to review how we will meet the expected increase in referrals providing the appropriate provision at the

correct level. The graduated approach will enable different levels of need to be addressed without overloading one part of the

system.

• A Multi-Agency Management group has been established that meets weekly. A risk register of those children with an EHCP and

classified as vulnerable has been created and each family is being contacted by the SEND team and an assessment of risk,

collecting both risk to learning and development and risk to welfare. This is being cross referenced with the reasonable

endeavours contacts. Any health or Social care concerns raised in these contacts is passed to leads in the service area for follow

up. This risk register is being further developed to collect risk assessment from Health and Social Care for families known to

them, giving us a clear priority list of shared concerns and informing a coordinated response to needs.

• We recognise that children with SEMH needs and emerging SEMH needs is a major concern which is cross cutting across all

agencies. We are proactively identifying those children who are ‘newly vulnerable’ as consequence to COVID 19, particularly

around SEMH.

• Increased engagement with schools to understand the gaps in support to young people who may be displaying difficult

behaviours but do not reach the threshold for HYM to ensure the graduated response supports the need schools are identifying.

Ongoing dialog to monitor.

2

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 8



Multi-Agency Graduated Response

3

HYM

HYM 

Consultation 

Starlight 

Programme

Low Level Thrive -

Professionals & All Age

School Nurse Drop Ins

Digital Offer

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 9



Multi-Agency Graduated Response
• CYP Thrive Grid has been produced to support CYP in navigating the system 

• A new digital offer has been implemented these include Kooth - an online counselling and emotional wellbeing platform, Shout – 24/7 UK Crisis 

text service, Silvercloud CBT & Resilience online platform all available.

• School Nurse drop in’s for secondary schools.

• Educational Psychologist school and parent helpline established and this will be further expanded 

• Bereavement offer via Grater Manchester & Local Bereavement service via Early Break 

• SENCO networks – virtual programme of support available to SENCos

• Access to resources through the GM partnership 

• Inclusion Ambassador for young people has established a regular forum/activities via ZOOM to provide support for children and young people 

during COVID 19 – this has proven to be very popular and sessions have been increased (33 YP attended last week). Planning to use these 

forums to consult on short breaks. The Inclusion Ambassador is also supporting wider response to COVID 19 across the NW through the SEND 

Young People’s Co- production Network. 

• HYM toolkit to support SEM has been circulated to schools via the SENCo networks 

• Ongoing support and development of resources for schools within individual teams and services e.g. Inclusion service

• Bury Youth Cabinet together with Bury Grammar school are inviting children and young people to write letters to people in our communities that 

are isolated during the covid-19 pandemic. The idea is that we can help people to feel less alone in these strange times.

• Bury Universal Youth service is running a daily programme of virtual events

• Low level Thrive all age single point of access, phased approach currently open for professionals to refer in however by August CYP will be able 

to ring directly, for support, advice and guidance. 

• Starlight Programme  will be available to all schools across Greater Manchester, provided by school Nurse provision. School Nurses are also 

training schools to deliver the intervention to increase provision and upskill school staff. 

• In addition we have 5 Emotional Mental Health trainee practitioners (EMHP’s) that will work directly in 10 schools across the Bury footprint from 

January 2020, the EMH trainees will have supervision from HYM and will study 2 days per at university. This will enable them to support young 

people through assessment, formulation, psychoeducation and (brief) treatment, using a range evidence-based low intensity, ‘CBT (Cognitive 

Behavioural Treatment) informed’ approaches. 

• Healthy Young Minds  will be offering schools bookable slots for consultations to discuss CYP, any concerns identified and seek advice. 

• Mindfulness and holistic therapies  via early break/streetwise

• Anxiety Course has been developed by HYM’s, places will be available for CYP but also schools have been encourage to book places to upskill 

staff in supporting their students. 

• HYM referral – details of provision available on following slide.

• Pennine Care Mental 24/7 helpline to support known patients and their carers. 

4

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 10



Bury Current Service Offer – Healthy Young Minds
Bury Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (Healthy Young Minds – previously CAMHS) offer specialist services to 

children and young people who are experiencing mental health difficulties. The service is delivered by Pennine Care 

Foundation Trust and is the core Children and Young People (CYP) mental health service in Bury.

Healthy Young Minds (HYM) helps children and young people up to the age of 18 years and provides assessment and 

intervention and support to their families/ carers. Some of the mental health conditions that Healthy Young Minds help with 

include: 

• Anxiety

• Depression

• Eating Disorders

• Psychosis

• Post-Traumatic Stress Disorders (PTSD)

• Neurodevelopment (ASD/ ADHD) 5-18 years of age (New pathway went live 1st of April 2020

• Self-harm

• Emotional Dysregulation

In addition, HYM provide consultation, advice and training to other agencies, including short-term consultation and 

interventions to parents of CYP with mental health needs. They are a multi-disciplinary team of psychiatrists, nurses, mental 

health practitioners, psychologists, social workers. 

Furthermore, Children and Young People Wellbeing Practitioners work within the team, providing low-level Cognitive 

Behaviour Therapy and support for CYP presenting with anxiety and depression. They work alongside link workers and 

school nurses in education and healthcare sectors. 8 practitioners have been recruited across GM, 2 of whom are in Bury. 

This programme is part of the national Children and Young People’s Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP 

IAPT) initiative, which aims to increase access and availability of mental health and wellbeing support for children and young 

people. Bury CCG have completed a full service review of the HYM provision which is currently going through the CCG’s 

governance process, the CCG are committed to working with the provider to ensure improvements to the service are made 

and patient satisfaction is increased. 

5

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 11



Mental Health Access Standards

NHS England has set the following standard in relation to access: 

“% of children and young people with a diagnosable mental health condition who receive treatment from an NHS 

funded community mental health service”.

NHS England has also set a trajectory for this standard which is shown in the table below alongside the local 

trajectory.

6

Year

Estimated Prevalence of 

mental health disorder age 

0-17

% Target

Numbers needed to 

treat in Bury to reach 

NHS England target

2016-17 3877 28% 1086

2017-18 3877 30% 1163

2018-19 3877 32% 1241

2019-20 3877 34% 1318

2020-21 3877 35% 1357

As a locality Bury achieved 18/19 standard and exceeded the trajectory for 19/20. In light of the current 

pandemic we are facing 20/21 standards have been paused. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 12



Waiting Time Standard’s

• Bury CCG monitors 2 waiting times indicators. The performance on these is detailed in the table below:

• The number of referrals to the Healthy Young Minds service is detailed in the table below. 

Bury CCG plans to work with partners to implement a range of programmes to better manage demand in the system 

and reduce waiting times. These include: 

• Further development of the Single Point of Access pathway

• Redesign the low level thrive mental health offer coproduced with the CYP of Bury

7

Indicator Target
Performanc

e 2016-17

Performanc

e 2017-18

Performance 

2018-19

% of children and young people who have their first 

contact within 12 weeks
95% 93.30% 99.00% 99.40%

% of children and young people who commence 

treatment within 18 weeks
98% 95.60% 99.40% 99.80%

Year
No of Referrals 

Accepted

Average per 

month

No of 

Referrals 

Rejected

2017-18 425 35 9

2018-19 683 57 15

2019-20

(Apr-Oct)
138 20 8

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 13



CCG Assurance / Recovery Planning  

• Monthly meetings are held with Healthy Young Minds to discuss service performance and pressures in the system.

• Quarterly formal contractual meetings are held across the Pennine Care footprint.

• Performance data is scrutinised monthly in both Maternity and Children’s work stream meeting and the Local
Transformation Plan meeting.

• Exceeded the CYP access target 19/20

• Full service review completed following concerns raised to parents at the SEND inspection, service review is
currently being processed through the CCG’s governance routes. Following sign off an improvement plan will be
agreed to ensure the recommendations and findings are addressed. Main themes identified improvements needed
around communication, pathway timescales, lack of consistency with staff and thresholds. The CCG are
committed to work with Pennine Care to improve patient satisfaction and ensure the provision is achieving
meaningful outcomes for service users.

• Regular engagement sessions held at the parent forum to gain insight and feedback around provision to ensure
changes are effective.

• Currently ADOS assessments (an assessment tool are not able to be completed. We currently have 20 children
on this waiting list for this assessment, once safe to do so the assessments will be carried out. In the meantime
changes to the pathway to reduce the need of an ADOS assessment have been made:

• Ensure detailed neurodevelopmental information is obtained from all parties

• A detailed neurodevelopmental history will be taken by one of our most experienced clinicians ( either consultant
psychiatrist of Clinical psychologist) this is usually done by an assistant practitioner but if a more experienced
clinician carries this out then they may be able to make a diagnosis.

• Detailed MDT discussions.

• Service users are not required to wear face masks if it causes them distress (specific to ASC)

• Service user feedback to understand what their experience has been in terms of virtual appointments via Zoom,
this may, in future to offer more choice for service users and families, for example neurodevelopmental work ups,
we agree that this could save a lot of time not only for the practitioner but service users and families.

8

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 14


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5 Mental Health  - Update on service provision in light of Covid-19
	HEalth Scrutiny June 2020


